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The area of town known as South Fayetteville has a long and interesting history. Most of 

us know South Fayetteville as the poor side of town, which it has been for nearly all of our 

history.  

This is the working class section of Fayetteville, with small, older homes, little corner 

groceries and neighborhood schools (all of the latter two now nearly defunct). But it wasnôt 

always where the less affluent citizens of Fayetteville lived ï far from it.  

Much of South Fayetteville, in fact, belonged to one man: arguably the most famous 

person to ever live here: the second Governor of the State of Arkansas, Archibald Yell. 

Archibald Yell isnôt just a bypass through the middle of town, he was a living, breathing 

politician, lawyer and military hero. Yell gained notoriety and the lasting appreciation of Andrew 

Jackson, Old Hickory, through his military exploits in the War of 1812 and other conflicts in the 

early years of the nineteenth century. It was President Jackson who gave Yell his first positions 

in the Arkansas Territory and Yell was also close friends with President James K. Polk, another 

favorite of Andrew Jackson. 

After starting in Little Rock in late 1831, by 1834 Yell had moved to Fayetteville ï early 

enough to qualify him as a founding father if not a first settler of our town. Yell was smart with 

his income and bought up lots of land around town, eventually owning some 900 acres of prime 

real estate. 500-600 of those acres were in what is now known as South Fayetteville.  

The northeast corner of Yellôs property began at the corner of 7th Street and S. College 

Avenue (where a monument stands today across from Jefferson School): 
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Yellôs land then continued south to below 15th Street, west to around Hill or Buchanan 

Avenue (where Fayetteville High School is located), then north to where 7th street would extend 

and back east to the starting point across the street from Jefferson School. 

 

 

**Note that all the sections circled indicate where Yell owned property in Fayetteville. 

The section circled just below the City of Fayetteville label is the property in what we now call 

South Fayetteville that belonged to Yell.** 
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Included in Yellôs property was his lovely old home, Waxhaws (named after the area 

where President Andrew Jackson had been born), which sat on the hill just northeast of todayôs 

Senior Center on S. College Avenue. Waxhaws was torn down between September 1962 and 

March 1963. Flat stone steps leading up to where the house stood can still be seen today.                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                           Waxhaws ï Archibald Yellôs Home in South Fayetteville 

 

Yellôs law office was saved and is now on the grounds of Headquarters House, home of 

the Washington County Historical Society on E. Dickson St.  

 
Archibald Yell Law Office 

 

 

Archibald Yell resigned his position as U. S. Senator in 1847 to enlist as a private (he 

was quickly elevated to the rank of Colonel) in the War against Mexico. He died valiantly, if 

impulsively, at the Battle of Buena Vista that same year.  
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He was first buried near the Mexican battlefield but was later re-interred at Waxhaws. 

When the Masons, of which he was a local leader (even providing the land for their first lodge in 

Arkansas here in Fayetteville), bought what would become Evergreen Cemetery, Yell was re-

interred there, marking that his third and final burial. 

                  
                 Archibald Yell Monument in Evergreen Cemetery 

 

 

As the years passed after Yellôs death, south Fayetteville ï perhaps because of its location 

below the Square and the flatter land where our wealthier residents lived in such places as the 

Washington-Willow Historic District ï became home to the less affluent in town. But that didnôt 

mean it didnôt have a character and personality of its own. 

South and west of Waxhaws, beyond the current Senior Center is one of Fayettevilleôs 

main city parks ï Walker Park. Given to the city by Mrs. Fannie Walker, widow of Henry  
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Walker, and their son Bryan Walker, the park was dedicated Thursday, June 1, 1961 with 

University of Arkansas football coach Frank Broyles giving the main speech. 

           

Today Walker Park has outgrown its original three youth baseball fields to include soccer 

fields, basketball courts, volleyball, tennis courts, and hiking/biking/jogging trails. One highlight 

of Walker Park is a large mural depicting the history of South Fayetteville. 

 
Historical Mural in Walker Park 

 

One of the main things that South Fayetteville has always been is a neighborhood. Even a 

place where poorer families, both black and white, commingled long before efforts were made to 

alleviate the strict segregation that existed in the century after the end of the civil war and 

slavery.  
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Besides wonderful little homes and neighborhood grocery stores that used to dot the area, 

South Fayetteville is also home to the National Cemetery, built after the civil war as a resting 

place for the Union dead who fought and died in this area.  

 
National Cemetery 

 

Just south of the National Cemetery is Oaks Cemetery, our traditionally African-

American cemetery, founded in 1867. Oaks Cemetery has just recently been placed on the 

Arkansas Register of Historic Places and efforts are underway to give it the attention it has 

deserved over these many years when the caretakers had little or no resources to maintain this 

significant and historic location. 

 
                   Oaks Cemetery ï view from western (newer) area 

 

Just north of the National Cemetery, at the corner of Martin Luther King Boulevard 

(formerly 6th Street) and Government Avenue was a small neighborhood once known as 


